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MONDAY, AUGUST 4, 2014 AT 9:45 A.M.

[Outside the presence of the prospective jury]
THE COURT: This is Case C290261, State of Nevada versus Christopher
Pigeon.
State’s ready?
MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Mr. Pigeon, you're ready?
THE DEFENDANT: | have a couple questions before we start.
THE COURT: Okay. Before we get started, are you ready?
THE DEFENDANT: | am ready for the jury.
THE COURT: All right. Before you can ask questions, | want to read
something to you.
Mr. Pigeon, under the Constitution of the United States and under the
Constitution of the State of Nevada, you cannot be compelled to testify in this case.
Do you understand that?
THE DEFENDANT: | cannot be compelled to testify?
THE COURT: Cannot be compelled to testify.
THE DEFENDANT: That's not a requirement in the Constitution.
THE COURT: You cannot be forced to testify.
THE DEFENDANT: Oh. Can't be forced. Yes, | understand that.
THE COURT: That's what compel means.
THE DEFENDANT: | do understand that.
THE COURT: You may, at your own request, give up that right and take the

witness stand and testify. If you do, you'll be subject to cross-examination by the
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deputy District Attorneys. And anything that you say may be -- may it be on direct or
cross-examination will be subject to fair comment when the deputy District Attorneys
speak to the jury in their final argument.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, | do.

THE COURT: If you choose not to testify, the Court will not permit the deputy
District Attorneys to make any comments to the jury because you have not testified.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: If you elect not to testify, | will give a jury instruction that reads
something to the effect -- it'll probably read exactly to the effect.

Quote: The law does not compel a Defendant in a criminal case to take
the stand and testify. And no presumption may be raised and no inference of any
kind may be drawn from the failure of the Defendant to testify.

Do you have any questions about your rights?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir

THE COURT: All right. And you had two questions before the State - the
State wants to put something on the record. What were your two questions?

THE DEFENDANT: Can we -- do we need to talk about the instructions now
or can that wait until after the jury?

THE COURT: Oh. You can give me what you think the instructions are. | will
ask the jury to give me a copy; you give me a copy, what you think the instructions
are and we’'ll deal with it later.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. It concerns some of the charges. Carl versus

State and Larson versus State both --
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THE COURT: Okay. You're arguing the jury instructions. | said, give me a
copy of them and we’ll look at them.

THE DEFENDANT: The cop --

THE COURT: Do you have a --

THE DEFENDANT: -- copy of my -

THE COURT: -- copy of the jury --

THE DEFENDANT: -- concerns.

THE COURT: -- of the jury instructions? Do you have a copy of the jury
instructions?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I do not.

THE COURT: All right. You'll get me a copy --

THE DEFENDANT: Sure.

THE COURT: -- before we go into it. Then you’ll be able to look at theirs and
give me any jury instruction you wish to give me.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: What other questions did you have?

THE DEFENDANT: Well it was all related to that. | wanted to talk about the
list of crimes. | mean, there are eight charges for only, essentially three --

THE COURT: Let me see the indictment.

THE DEFENDANT: -- three conditions or three situations. I'd like to reduce
that to three crimes, rather than eight crimes for three circumstances.

THE COURT: Well --

THE DEFENDANT: Or maybe four -- at least four because there’s two --

THE COURT: Is this the one you're reading?

THE DEFENDANT: -- prohibited acts by a sex offender, which are both the
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same -- for the same incident.

THE COURT: Okay. That will -- we’'ll have to bifurcate that. They don’t get to
hear that at the first because they have -- once -- that would be prejudicial if they
heard that you had a prior sexual conviction. So, what we'll do -- do you have a
copy of the -- of this one -- that she’s going to read?

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Yeah. | putit on his desk.

THE COURT: Okay. And it will be -- six counts will be read to them.

THE DEFENDANT: This is reduced to six counts?

THE COURT: It's not reduced, it's just bifurcated. If they find you guilty of a
sex crime, then the other crimes will then have to be decided by the jury.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: That’s right, Judge. And we have Defendant’s
statement that we intend to play. We've redacted anything that talks about him
being a prior sex offender. So the first portion of the trial, jury will not know that he
is a convicted sex offender. It would just be on the counts one through six. And
then after the verdict on those counts would be the -- likely, a little bit of additional
evidence and then the deliberations on the other two.

THE COURT: All right.

THE DEFENDANT: What -

THE COURT: And | will instruct the jury, when they come in, that you have
the right -- under the Constitution you have the right to an attorney, but you waived
that -- or gave that right up in representing yourself.

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct.

THE COURT: All right.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm concerned about gross lewdness -- are you bringing

up the old gross lewdness charges?
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MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Not in the first portion. The first portion is really just
going to deal with the incident between Mr. Pigeon and the named victim. So, we're
not going to get into that --

THE COURT: And CHIIE CHR

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes. We're not going to get into any of that
conviction during the first presentation of the evidence here. So that won't be
something we bring up.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions you wish me to ask the jury in voir
dire?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, | had a couple other very brief things if that's
okay.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: We provided the Defendant on Friday all the photos
in the case. We gave that to him so he does have the photographs. There was a
still photo from the video taken in this case. There’s no actual video that’s going to
be played, just the still photograph, but | did provide that to Mr. Pigeon. So, he's got
all the visual evidence.

As far as -- we did file a notice of habitual treatment and | just wanted to
make a record of the potential punishments, make sure Mr. Pigeon understands that
as well. Again, this would only be in case of a conviction. And certainly it's
discretionary on the Court whether or not to sentence Mr. Pigeon. He does have
three prior felony convictions from 2000, 2006, and 2012.

The penalties under the small habitual are between 5 and 20. And the
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large habitual could be life without parole, 10 to life, or 10 to 25. Those could be
things that we could ask for. Again, it's discretionary on the Court.

THE DEFENDANT: That's incorrect.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: It -- well, what | mean --

THE DEFENDANT: Both those were incorrect.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. I'm just --

THE DEFENDANT: | have the statute.

THE COURT: Okay. Shh, shh, shh.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay. This is with the 207.010 and this was filed that
we do seek intent to ask for this. But, again, that’s only in the case of conviction.
And those are penalty ranges that the State could ask.

THE COURT: And you have certified copies of the convictions.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: 1 just want to -- the case law says that Mr. -- or
anyone representing themselves has to know all the punishments and that could be
a potential. So | want to make a record and make sure he understands that before
we start.

THE COURT: That’s the range of punishments. That doesn’t mean that's
what you're getting if you're convicted.

THE DEFENDANT: No. But that's incorrect because it's attempted
kidnapping, which bumps it down to a Class B felony. So it can’t be more than 15
years.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Thatis --

MS. MERCER: She’s not --
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MR. SCHIFALACQUA: That would be true, Mr. Pigeon, if you're just, you
know, sentenced under the statute itself. This would be the habitual.

THE COURT: If they find --

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Because of the priors.

THE COURT: If they fall --

THE DEFENDANT: | don’'t have any priors. There’s no connection there for
Class D felony to a Class B felony, which is originally a misdemeanor.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay, Judge.

THE DEFENDANT: So there’s no habitual there.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: I'm just saying we do have certified priors -- of three
prior convictions that's --

THE DEFENDANT: | have a problem with that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Let me see them.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Okay, Judge.

THE COURT: | don’t know what your background is, Mr. Pigeon.

THE DEFENDANT: They're all misdemeanor charges and they -- he illegally,
automatically enhanced them by a statute to Class B felonies. They're gross
misdemeanor -- | mean, open and gross lewdness charges. There's a total of four.

THE COURT: [l look at the certified.

THE DEFENDANT: But | will say this one was for having my hand in my
pocket. And the other one was for touching a waitress in the lower back. And that
was it. That's for two of them. So they're not that serious of crime. The other one
was a plea bargain on which | wasn’t convicted. | just selected the plea bargain.

THE COURT: Well they -- your -- that's a conviction, sir.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, itis -
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THE COURT: If you pled bargain --

THE DEFENDANT: -- a conviction, but | would say it qualifies as habitual.
And certainly not for a Class B felony.

THE COURT: Well, if they -- if you have two prior felony convictions, you're
subject --

THE DEFENDANT: They're misdemeanors, originally.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, can | -

THE COURT: Okay. Don't interrupt me, please.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: This wasn't provided --

THE COURT: I'm going to try to be as calm as | can. Don’t interrupt me.
Don't interrupt them. | won't let them interrupt you.

If you have two prior felony convictions, and they have certified copies,
you're subject to the small habitual. If they have three, you're subject to the large
habitual. That's what they were trying to notify you. The small habitual is 2 to 20.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Or 5 to 20. I'm sorry, Judge.

THE COURT: Yeah. 5to 20. And the large you could get -- the maximum,
it'd be life without the possibility of parole. That's what the range of punishment is.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: And just so we're clear --

THE DEFENDANT: Well, I'm saying those were originally misdemeanor
charges. If they had been my first convision [sic] that -- conviction, they would have
all had been --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- misdemeanor charges.

THE COURT: Okay. Here is a conviction, C269318, open or gross lewdness,

Category D felony, occurring October 31%, 2012. Your sent -- your attorney was
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Ryan Bashor. You pled guilty. You were sentenced to 36 to 14 months -- 14 to 36
months in the Nevada Department of Corrections. With 720 days -- 28 days. Itis
certified raised. Probably should staple that, please.

Okay. The second one they handed me is C216699, entered a plea --
you had pled guilty to that one, | assume, because then you had gone to trial having
been found guilty of the crime of open or gross lewdness, a Category D felony.
Mark Cichoski was your public defender.

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct.

THE COURT: And --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. | remember those charges.

THE COURT: And you were sentenced to 19 to 48 months in the Nevada
Department of Corrections. And that's a felony raised. That's a certified copy. So
there's two felonies.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. Both of those were raised from misdemeanors.

THE COURT: And then a Texas case, October 3™, 2000. Bill Cox was your
attorney.

THE DEFENDANT: It was Craig Davis also.

THE COURT: Okay. Hold on, hoid on.

THE DEFENDANT: And | represented myself.

THE COURT: Okay. You keep interrupting me. I’'m trying to read.

You pled guilty to the charge agreed to by Counsel and the State.
Thereupon Defendant was admonished by the Court of the consequences of his
plea and you persisted in pleading guilty. And this is a certified copy of a district
court. Itis a forgery.

THE DEFENDANT: Those are forgeries of my parent’s checks.

Volume | - Page 12
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THE COURT: It doesn’t matter what they are. Ifit's a felony, then they can
enhance it. They can use it as an enhancement.

You waived a jury trial. And your attorney was Stuart Leeds. Forgery,
financial, concurrent to the other one. That appears to be a felony. So that
appears -- that there appears to be three felonies. Is that correct to the State?

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: It is correct, Judge. And --

THE COURT: Okay. Financial and two open and gross lewdness.

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct. But they are originally misdemeanor,
open and gross lewdness's.

THE COURT: Okay. You were convicted of felonies.

THE DEFENDANT:; Right.

THE COURT: Does that affect whether you want to represent yourself? Or
whether you want to go forward with this trial?

THE DEFENDANT: No, it does not.

THE COURT: Are you sure?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm positive. | just --

THE COURT: We have a jury out here and if you want a lawyer after hearing
that the -- possibility of life without is there, if you want an attorney, | will stop the
trial, I'll send the jury home, I'll get you an attorney.

THE DEFENDANT: No. | have no problem. But I'd like to readdress one
thing.

THE COURT: Okay. Before we get to that | just want to make sure that you
understand, if you're convicted of a felony here and they enhance it that they have

three prior convictions. Do you understand that?
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crime.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. Butthere’s really no crime. | haven’t committed a

THE COURT: Do you understand the ramifications?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, | do understand it. But | -

THE COURT: Okay. Just --

THE DEFENDANT: | have no crime.

THE COURT: Okay. Stop. Do you understand the ramifications of three

prior convictions?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, | do.
THE COURT: And what is that? That -- what is the possibility of the penalty

that the Court could get you -- give you?

25.

THE DEFENDANT: Well, Schifalacqua here --
THE COURT: If --
THE DEFENDANT: -- claimed that it was 2 to 20 -- or 5 to 20 and then 10 to

THE COURT: And if they find — if they are able to prove the large habitual,

what could the Court sentence you to?

done.

THE DEFENDANT: Life. However, that’s --

THE COURT: Life, without the possibility of parole.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, but -

THE COURT: Do you understand?

THE DEFENDANT: | --

THE COURT: | want you to fully understand the ramifications?

THE DEFENDANT: | understand, but I'd like to say something when we're
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THE COURT: Okay. But do you understand the ramifications?

THE DEFENDANT: | do understand.

THE COURT: And if you're convicted, that’s the range of punishments. |
mean, the Court could find -- not find the habitual, or -- and then you would be
sentenced on whatever you were found guilty of. Or the Court could find you of the
small habitual and sentence you as a small habitual, from 5 to 20. Or the large
habitual, which is -- the maximum would be life without. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: | do understand that. But I'd like to comment when
you're finished, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. All right. But | just want you to tell me that you
understand and you want to go forward anyway.

THE DEFENDANT: | understand and I'd like to go forward representing
myself.

THE COURT: All right. So now what do you want to say?

THE DEFENDANT: What | was trying to say before is he says there’s not --
there's not -- there are eight charges on here. And -- not counting the open and
gross lewdness, and not counting the prohibited acts by a sex offender, there are
five charges all for the same incident.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: | think that's ridiculous when four of them are Class -- or
are Category B felonies. 1 think we can reduce that to two Category B felonies.

THE COURT: Okay. They are charging you with first degree kidnapping, a
Category B felony; aggravated stalking, Category B felony; luring children with intent
to engage in sexual conduct, Category B felony; burglary, Category B felony; and

open or gross lewdness --
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THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. | said outside of the open and gross lewdness --
the outside of the prohibited acts, the only other one is unlawful contact with a child.

THE COURT: A gross misdemeanor.

THE DEFENDANT: Right. Now that's five charges all for the same incident.
And four of them are Class B felonies. | think we could --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- reduce that to one misdemeanor and a one Class B
felony, perhaps luring children with the intent to engage in sexual conduct.

THE COURT: Well, they have to prove their case to the jury.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, but | don’t -- | don't think that should even be --

THE COURT: This is not a time --

THE DEFENDANT: | don’t think that should even be legal. That should be
illegal to have --

THE COURT: Well, you should have filed a motion earlier.

THE DEFENDANT: ['ve filed five motions. You --

THE COURT: I don't -~

THE DEFENDANT: You didn’t hear any of them.

THE COURT: | don’t have any motions. | don’t have any motions you've
filed.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, you do. They're on the record.

THE COURT: Okay. | don't have it.

THE DEFENDANT: | have four motions to di -- drop charges --

THE COURT: Give me a copy of them. Didn't we --

THE DEFENDANT: And | have one motion --

THE COURT: Didn’'t we decide these?
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MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Judge, there was a motion that | think he entitled:
Motion to Drop Charges. It was an -- essentially a pretrial petition for writ of habeas
corpus.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: It was filed late so we couldn’t -- you wouldn’t have
jurisdiction to hear that.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: You know, certainly we went to the Grand Jury, we
indicted on these charges. You know, whether or not the Court, you know, runs
these concurrently or consecutively, certainly the Court could look at that. But we
certainly have proved the elements we did at the Grand Jury.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: You know, and we --

THE COURT: Well, no. You have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Exactly. And we -- and that’s up to the, you know, up
to the jury, but --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: -- as of now, we can't just dismiss counts, certainly.

THE COURT: No. We're not in that position.

THE DEFENDANT: Well, | think it's extreme due process to have five -- or
four Class B felonies for a single incident.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

THE DEFENDANT: They don’t have any of the components.

THE COURT: Well, they're going to have to prove those components.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. But does it need to be all four charges.
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THE COURT: If they can -- the Grand Jury returned it and if -- they have to
prove it to the jury.

THE DEFENDANT: All right. But the whole motion | wrote to drop the
charges was based upon the fact the charges were not even discussed at the Grand
Jury.

THE COURT: Right.

THE DEFENDANT: They just mentioned them as being there and then didn’t
discuss -- they primarily discussed --

THE COURT: Do you want me to appoint an attorney to represent you?

THE DEFENDANT: No, | don’t. | just want to make clear for the Court and
for the record --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- this is being recorded, is it not?

THE COURT: Oh yeah. Absolutely.

THE DEFENDANT: | just want to make sure, for the record, that it's being
heard.

THE COURT: And you're not to make standing objections and vocal
objections. If you make an objection, | will release the jury and then you can put
things on the record. Don't talk in front of the jury. We can’t have talking objections.
All right? I'll let you put anything on the record when they jury’s not here.

THE DEFENDANT: No. That's illegal.

THE COURT: No. No, it's not.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, itis illegal.

THE COURT: No. I'm following the order --

THE DEFENDANT: You can ask me to approach the desk.
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THE COURT: No, I'm not -- 'm not having you approach to the bench. We
don’t do that.

THE DEFENDANT: That's prejudicial --

THE COURT: If you object --

THE DEFENDANT: -- on your part, Your Honor.

THE COURT: No, it's not. If you object --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, itis.

THE COURT: -- to something, | will release the jury and then we’ll discuss it.

THE DEFENDANT: All right. | think that's unfair, but | say all right.

THE COURT: It's not unfair because we're not talking in front of the jury. The
problem would be you're testifying in front of the jury sometimes when you object --
make objections. And | won't have that. The Nevada Supreme Court doesn’t allow
that; talking objections.

THE DEFENDANT: That's not true.

THE COURT: Wellitis.

THE DEFENDANT: No, it's not.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm not going to agree with you on that.

THE COURT: You don't have to.

All right. Again, do you have any questions you wish me to ask the jury
in voir dire?

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Yes, Judge. We -- | wrote out a few.

THE COURT: Do you have any questions you wish me to ask the jury in voir
dire, Mr. Pigeon?

THE DEFENDANT: No, | do not. | think | can handle it myself.

Volume | - Page 19

000019




10

11

12

13

14

156

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: No. I'm going to be asking the questions on voir dire. Do you
have any questions you wish to ask -- me to ask the jury?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, in that case, I'd like to know their occupation.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: We'll say religion, education level.

THE COURT: Education.

THE DEFENDANT: And whether or not they have children.

THE COURT: Children.

THE DEFENDANT: That'll be good enough for me.

THE COURT: Okay. Bring the jury in, Tom.

[Colloquy between the Court and the Law Clerk]

THE MARSHAL: And you're ready for the jury?

THE COURT: Yeah. Go get the jury.

[In the presence of the prospective jury]

THE MARSHAL: All rise, please.

And be seated.

THE COURT: Good morning, ladies and gentleman. Thank you for being her
today. We're on the record in Case C290261; State of Nevada versus Christopher
Pigeon. This -- the record will reflect the presence of two attorneys for the State,
Mr. Pigeon, as well as all officers of the Court.

My name is Judge Doug Smith. I'm the District Court Judge in
Department VIl that you've been subpoenaed here as jurors -- or possible jurors. |
need to inform you that under the Sixth Amendment of the United States, every
person charged with a crime -- felony crime has the right to an attorney. Mr. Pigeon

has that right. He has waived that right and has asked to represent himself. And
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you should have -- you should take no offense to that; to the State or to Mr. Pigeon.

I'll -- again, my name is Doug Smith. The marshal is Tom Lemke.
Louisa Garcia and Jill Jacoby. Louisa is my court clerk. You'll see a young man
come in. His name is Alan. He is my law clerk, Alan Miller. Does anyone know me
or my staff? No hands.

There are a couple questions that | need to ask and then we’ll shortly
begin the process of selecting a jury to sit and decide this case. It'll probably go
until Wednesday. Before we do that, speak up because the court recorder records
everything that takes place in this courtroom. Please don’t say uh-huh or uh-uh. It's
yes or no. Because you can't -- it's hard to transcribe the uh-uh and the ubh-huh'’s.

If we ask you to identify yourself, you can use the last three numbers of
your badge and your name. If you need to communicate with the Court, you'll do
that through the marshal, Tom. There may be other marshals that come or go if
Tom has other assignments that he must do. They'll be in uniform. You'll be able to
identify them.

You'll come to know the court personnel a little bit through coming and
going every day. They are under orders not to talk to you, to say good morning, to
speak to the jury at all. It's not that they are anti-social, but if we talk to someone,
even saying could you push 16 to come up to this floor, please don’t do that. Just
reach over and push it. That's not going to be considered rude by them. But if you
see us, don't -- please don't talk to us because it would have the appearance that
maybe you could be unduly being influenced by one of the court staff.

| need to ask a couple questions. They'll -- some of our questions
seem to be personal. | don'tintend it to be personal, but | have to ask a couple

questions. First of all, if anyone is not a citizen of the United States, | need to know
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that. You cannot sit as a juror. If you're not a citizen, please raise your hand.
Seeing no hands. Or if you're a convicted felon that have not had their civil rights
restored, | need you to raise your hand because you can't sit as a juror. Thank you.

I'll ask the State then to identify themselves, and their potential
witnesses, and tell a little bit about the case.

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: Thank you, Your Honor.

Good morning, everyone. My name is Marc Schifalacqua and this is
Elizabeth Mercer. We're Chief Deputy DA's here in Clark County and we represent
the people of the State of Nevada in this criminal prosecution. In this case Mr.
Pigeon is being charged with some acts that occurred in May of 2013. And to be
very brief, it involves stalking a 12 year old girl, trying to lure her away from her
parents for sexual purposes, and then also masturbating while he was watching her.
So thatis in 2013 -- May 2013.

The charges are attempt first degree kidnapping, aggravated stalking,
luring children with the intent to engage in sexual conduct, burglary, open and gross
lewdness, and unlawful contact with the child. Below -- I'm just going to read off the
witness list in this case. We very well may not call all of these witnesses. | just --
they're on the list just in case you know somebody, I'll read that off. Okay. |
appreciate that.

Some members of the Metropolitan Police Department, including Brian
Wyche, Randall McPhail, Roberto Juarez, Cheryl Hooten, Ryan Jaeger, Troy
Givens, David Prichard, and Jason Lafreniere. The minor, who's the alleged victim
in this case, her name is Cill CHEEI Kathryn Hernandez, John Bryant.
Some custodian of records or manager folks from the Bargain Motel, Edwards Mini

Storage, Ten Dollar Fitness, and Mona Lisa Carillo. So those are the witnesses --
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potential witnesses in this case. Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Thank you. Do any of the jurors know those witnesses? Or
any of the names from the DA's? Thank you. Mr. Pigeon, if you'll identify yourself
and identify any witnesses that you may call.

THE DEFENDANT: My name is Christopher Pigeon. I'd like to remind you
that these acts by --

THE COURT: No, no, no, no. ldentify any witnesses you may call. It's not
time to do an opening statement.

THE DEFENDANT: All right. | just have myself as a witness.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Go ahead and have a seat, Mr. Pigeon.

All right. Tom, get the --

We have to select 12 jurors that'll be -- will be fair and impartial both to
the Defendant and the State of Nevada. As the Defendant sits here right now, he's
innocent of all charges because no one has heard any evidence. Does that bother
anyone that they have to hear the evidence? Not that the evidence is ugly. It's that
you'll hear the evidence before you’ll make a decision. In the back. Thomas.

THE COURT: Identify yourself and your last three numbers of your badge,
please.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 518: Brianna Maldonado, 518.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 518: Because of a past experience, |
would biased towards this case.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll have to ask some questions in a little bit. Okay?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 518: Okay.

THE COURT: | appreciate you -- we don’t mean to be prying, but we have a
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right to ask you some questions and we have to ask questions.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 518: Okay.

THE COURT: | understand.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614: | have a family member that have
a -- some -- a familiar case open that we can --

THE COURT: Okay. Your name and your badge number, please.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614: Landaro.

THE COURT: And your badge number.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614: 614.

THE COURT: Okay. You have a family member that has similar charges --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614: Is a victim.

THE COURT: Is the victim?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: Okay. Just remind me if we call you. Actually it'll go this way
down that line. So --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 678: Lilia Espinosa.

THE COURT: --just remind me.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 678: Badge 7 -- 678.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 678: Personal -- I've gone through similar
stuff like that. So --

THE COURT: Okay. Just remind me when -- if we call you up into the jury
box. All right.

THE DEFENDANT: Was that the same juror?

THE COURT: No.

Volume | - Page 24

000024




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE DEFENDANT: Land -- what was the name?

THE COURT: Did you identify -- I'm sorry. What's your name and your

badge number, ma’am?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614:

THE COURT: Okay.
THE DEFENDANT: Name?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 614:

THE DEFENDANT: Oh.
THE COURT: Landaro.

614.

Landaro.

THE DEFENDANT: That was the same person. Thank you. Appreciate that.

THE COURT: All right. Tell me your name. You can stay seated.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Amber Floyd, Badge Number 313.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: What do you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: Their ages?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313:

THE COURT: And -- one child?

Yes, | do.

I'm a custodian.

Courtney Junior High School.

No.

Yes.

Ten.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Boy or girl?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Girl.

THE COURT: Do you have any background in law or law enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: How far did you go in school?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Technical. I'm a licensed
cosmetologist, just -- as well.

THE COURT: Do you have any problem sitting in judgment of others?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: You'll be the judge of the facts. What the jury is, is the judge of]
facts. I'll tell you what the law is. You have to follow the law. Does anybody have a
problem with that? Okay.

Do you -- or have you ever - do you use -- ever use the city busses?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yes.

THE COURT: How often?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Once out of the blue moon. So --

THE COURT: Has anybody in the panel ever -- in this 14 ever been followed
before? Okay. All right. Pass that mic over to that lady next to you. Tell me your
name and your badge number.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Dorothy Shuler, 337.

THE COURT: How did that make you feel?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Upset, because | was mugged.
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Los Angeles.

the State or the Defendant in this case?

cases.

ins -- I've instructed you.

Okay.

THE COURT: Okay. When did that happen?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: It happened about ten years ago in

THE COURT: Not here in Las Vegas.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No.

THE COURT: Police called?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes, they were.

THE COURT: And did they come?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes, they did.

THE COURT: Was there anything about that that would prejudice you against

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No, because totally unrelated type

THE DEFENDANT: What was your name again, ma'am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Dorothy Shuler.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. | appreciate that.

THE COURT: Okay. You'll address the Court, please, Mr. Pigeon as we’ve

THE DEFENDANT: All right, Your Honor.
[Colloquy between the Court and the Marshal]
THE COURT: All right. Then pass that down. Who else raised their hand?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: It's Sheri Harris, Badge Number 356.

[Colloquy between the Court and the Clerk]
THE COURT: Tell me about the incident.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: The incident was when | was in fifth
grade and | was followed by a man for several days. He had waited at my bus stop
and there was masturbation involved and the police were called.

THE COURT: And did you go to trial and testify?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Yes.

THE COURT: And where did that happen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Pennsylvania.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. | may ask you some more questions in a
minute. If you'll pass that mic back.

Do you have any feeling one way or another -- no. All the way back.
All the way. On whether a grown male or female would have a dating relationship or
intimate relationship with a teenager.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Can you repeat that again? I'm
sorry.

THE COURT: Do you have any feeling one way or the other if a male or a
female -- if it's appropriate for a grown male or female to have a dating or an
intimate relationship with a teenager?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No. It's not appropriate. And |
wouldn’t feel that way for the fact that | am around pre-teens. So, | would feel that
that's not, you know, comfortable or -- what's the word I'm looking for?

THE COURT: Now, you bring your everyday, common sense --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- to the courtroom. We're not asking that. You won’t hold
anything against the Defendant or the State because you have a daughter.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No, | wouldn't.
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THE COURT: Okay. You'll listen to the evidence -- what we want is
everyone to listen to the testimony, look at the exhibits, and make a decision from
these four walls. Can you do that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. And you'll be fair and impartial to both parties in this
case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yes.

THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: Accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender,
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: No.

THE COURT: You promise to be truthful to all of your responses here in court
and you're telling us the truth today?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313: Yes.

THE COURT: And you'll listen to all of the evidence before you make up your
mind.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 313; Yes.

THE COURT: [f you'll pass that mic over. All right. Tell me your name again.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Dorothy Shuler.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Badge 337. Shuler, like the Garden

Grove minister.
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THE COURT: Okay. Do you work? Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No. I'm on disability.

THE COURT: And what did you do before you were put on disability?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: The last job | had, | was a janitor in a

homeless shelter.

THE COURT: Do you have a background in law or law enforcement?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No, | do not.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you ever been the

victim of a crime? Other than what you've talked to us.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: As | mentioned before | was mugged

and a --

THE COURT: Other than that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: And my aunt was murdered.
THE COURT: Okay. You wouldn’t hold that against the Defendant.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No.

THE COURT: You'll listen to all of the evidence --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes.

THE COURT: -- before you make a decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes.

THE COURT: Any way -- you or anyone closely associated with you been

accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: When -- during the time when | was

homeless, | was accused of shoplifting.
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THE COURT: Was that here in Las Vegas or in Los Angeles?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No. That was in San Diego,
California.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any biases based on race, religion, or
gender, or ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: No.

THE COURT: Do you ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes, | do, for almost all of my
transportation.

THE COURT: Okay. What is your feeling about the appropriateness of a
grown male or female to have a dating or an intimate relationship with a teenager?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: | do not feel it is appropriate.

THE COURT: You can set that -- well, in all fairness, you -- you'll listen to the
evidence here in the court and the testimony and -- before you make your mind
up -- guilt or innocence of the Defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Exactly. Yes.

THE COURT: You'll be fair and impartial to both parties

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 337: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Pass that to the [indiscernible].

Tell me your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: Bette Johnson.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.
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THE COURT: Can you tell me your education background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: 14 years.

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been the
victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: Accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: Can you fair and impartial to both parties in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: No.

THE COURT: You'll listen to all of the evidence before you make up your
mind in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: Yes.

THE COURT: And you'll be fair and impartial to both parties?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 349: Yes.

THE COURT: Next. Pass that over. All right. Tell me your name again. I'm
sorry.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: It's Sherri Harris, Juror --

THE COURT: Do --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: -- 356.
THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Yes.

THE COURT: What do you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Bartender.
THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Paris Hotel.
THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Single.
THE COURT: Do you have children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: No.

THE COURT: Have you or someone close to you ever been the victim of a

crime? Other than what you've told us.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: No.
THE COURT: Accused of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or

ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: No.

THE COURT: You'll be fair and impartial to both parties in this case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 356: No.

THE COURT: All right. If you'll pass that mic over. Tell me your name.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Susan Purcell.
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THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Yes.

THE COURT: What do you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: | work for the State of Nevada.

THE COURT: What -- in what --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Office of Consumer Health
Assistance.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: No.

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Yes.

THE COURT: How -- ages and how many?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Two; 29 and 27.

THE COURT: What is their gender?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Male, 29. Female, 27.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: No.

THE COURT: You'll listen to all of the evidence before you make up your
mind in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you ever ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 361: No.

THE COURT: If you'll pass that. Tell me your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Gigi Kennamer, Badge Number 364.
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THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.

THE COURT: What do you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Make-up artist.

THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: MAC.

THE COURT: MAC. What's that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: It's a cosmetics company. I'm sure
every woman in here probably knows what itis. No offense.

THE COURT: All right. Sorry. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.

THE COURT: Spouse work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your spouse do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: He's IT for Caesar’s Corporation.

THE COURT: Educational background.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: High school and make-up artist
school.

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: No.

THE COURT: You or anyone closely associated with you been the victim of a
crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: No.

THE COURT: Accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: No.
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THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.
THE COURT: | forgot to ask these -- anybody have been that we've already

asked?

PREVIOUS PROSPECTIVE JURORS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Here. Las Vegas

THE COURT: Civil or criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: It was a coroner’s inquest.

THE COURT: Okay. So it wasn't a jury like this?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: It was a jury.

THE COURT: Butit -- but it was a coroner's inquest rather than a trial --
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.

THE COURT: It’s a bit different. 12 of you go back in. All 12 of you have to

be convinced beyond a reasonable doubt of the charges.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.
THE COURT: Do you understand that?

How long ago were you on that coroner’s inquest?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: | believe four years ago.
THE COURT: Okay. And that was here in Las Vegas?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or

ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: No.
THE COURT: Do you ever ride the city bus?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 364: No.

THE COURT: All right. If you'd pass that mic over. Tell me your name.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Karen Socha-Smith, 372.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: I'm a landlord.
THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Yes.

THE COURT: Spouse work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your spouse do?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Pharmacist.
THE COURT: What's your educational background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Post-graduate.

THE COURT: Do you have children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Two.

THE COURT: Ages and gender?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: 30 and 28.
THE COURT: Gender?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Female. Both.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you or anyone close to you been the victim of a

crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Yes.
THE COURT: What kind?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Assault and battery.

THE COURT: Who?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Grandmother.

THE COURT: Where at?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Michigan.

THE COURT: And were you -- did you follow that crime? | mean, were you
there and go to court with her?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you generally satisfied how it was handlied?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Is there any bias with that against the State or the
Defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias of -- on race, religion, or gender, or
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: No.

THE COURT: And do you ever ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 372: No.

THE COURT: Okay. You could just tell me your name. You don't need to
give me your badge number yet.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Shirley Shaffer.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: No. I'm retired.

THE COURT: Retired from what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Purchasing at the hotels.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: No.
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THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: Ages and gender.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: The boy is a man, 45 and the
daughteris 42.

THE COURT: Have you ever been the victim of -- or anyone closely
associated with you been a victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. What crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Stalking.

THE COURT: Who?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: And the boyfriend's -- the girlfriend
of my husband.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: And her boyfriend.

THE COURT: Stalked whom? You?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Stalked me.

THE COURT: And did you call the police on that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: And did they respond?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: And how did you feel about that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: That it was handled well.

THE COURT: Okay. You don’t have any bias to the Defendant or the State
with that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: No.

THE COURT: You'll be fair and impartial and listen to the testimony and look
at the exhibits here to make a decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: Has any -- have you or anyone closely associated with you
been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: No.

THE COURT: What's your educational background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: 14 years.

THE COURT: Do you ever ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Yes.

THE COURT: How often?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 373: Weekly.

THE COURT: Okay. If you'll pass that mic over. Tell me your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: Loretta Coffey, 378.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: | do.

THE COURT: What do you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: I'm a nurse at North Vista.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: | am.

THE COURT: Your spouse work?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: Yes.
THE COURT: What does your spouse do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: He works at a casino as a part-time

floor manager.
THE COURT: Do you have children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: | do.
THE COURT: Ages and gender.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: My daughter's 36.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been a victim

of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: No.
THE COURT: Accused of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: No.

THE COURT: | forgot to ask too -- about jury service. Have you ever sat on a

jury before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: | have actually.
THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: Federal court, here in Las Vegas.

THE COURT: Civil or criminal?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: Criminal.

THE COURT: Without telling us a verdict, were you able to reach a verdict?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: A verdict was reached. | was the

alternate. Therefore, on the last day | did not participate.

THE COURT: Okay. | was going to ask -- and the next question were you

the jury foreperson. Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or
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ethnicity?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: No.
THE COURT: Do you ride the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: | did today for the first time in six

years.

THE COURT: Okay. Can you think of any reason you would not be fair and

impartial?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 378: No.
THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?
UNKNOWN PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Pass that to the gentleman. Tell me your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Kent Bates.
THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: No.

THE COURT: You retired?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Retired.

THE COURT: From what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Pipe fitter.
THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Yes.

THE COURT: Spouse work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: No. She’s retired.
THE COURT: Retired from what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: An accountant.
THE COURT: Where?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Through temp agencies here and in
Michigan.

THE COURT: Have you -- your educational background is?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: A BBA.

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: One stepson.

THE COURT: How old?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: 46.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been the
victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: No.

THE COURT: Accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: Accused. But the accusations were
later dropped. So | don’t know if that counts.

THE COURT: Who?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: By Las Vegas Metro.

THE COURT: Who was accused? You?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: | was. Yes.

THE COURT: Of what kind of crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382. Domestic battery.

THE COURT: All right. Is there anything about that that would prejudice you
against the State or the Defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever ridden the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382: No.
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THE COURT: Can you fair and impartial to both parties in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 382:

Yes.

THE COURT: If you'll pass that to the gentleman. Tell me your name.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
THE COURT: Do you work?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
THE COURT: What do you do?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
mostly a college student.
THE COURT: Where at?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
THE COURT: What are you studying?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
THE COURT: Are you married?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:
THE COURT: Do you have children?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:

Justin.

Yes.

U.S. Army National Guard. But I'm

UNLV.

Computer engineering.

No.

No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been the

victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:

| have a cousin who was kidnapped

and murdered. | have another cousin who was murdered. And then | have my

daughter’s neighbor was sexually assaulted.

THE COURT: When? Where and about how long ago?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385:

All of them.

THE COURT: All -- yeah. Were they here in Las Vegas?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: No. One of them was overseas.
Another one was here in America. | forgot. They never found him so. And my
neighbor’s daughter lives next to me. So.

THE COURT: Were there any -- anything about those cases that would
prejudice you against the State or the Defendant in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: | do have -- let me say that that
her -- their daughter, she was a close friend of the family so like she would be over
for dinner and stuff like that. | don’t know if that's like bias or whatever, but she
meant something, if that's what you're asking.

THE COURT: Whose daughter?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: My neighbor’'s daughter. Like
she --

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: She would come out and hang out
with our --

THE COURT: But you wouldn’t hold that -- the crime against -- the person
that committed the crime against the Defendant?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: I'd try not to.

THE COURT: You would listen to the evidence.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: Yeah. I'd try -- I'd try not --

THE COURT: And look at the exhibits and make a decision.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: Right. I'd try not to.

THE COURT: And you'll be fair and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or
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gender, or ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever ridden the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: Yes, as a kid.

THE COURT: Pardon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: As a kid, yes.

THE COURT: But you don’t now?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: No.

THE COURT: How old are you again?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: 22.

THE COURT: Okay. Can you think of any reason you wouldn't fair and

impartial to both parties in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: Other than --

THE COURT: Other than what you've already told us.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 385: No.

THE COURT: [f you'll pass that to the young lady. Tell me your name.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: My name is Susan Black.
THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: I'm retired.

THE COURT: From what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | worked in education and for most

of it | counseled children from the ages of 5 to 12 years of age.

THE COURT: What's your educational background?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | have a master's degree.

THE COURT: In what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: Counseling.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: I'm divorced.

THE COURT: And what did your husband do when he worked?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: He was a superintendent of schools.

THE COURT: And were you here in Las Vegas?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No, we were not.

THE COURT: Okay. Where did you counsel children at?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | guess you can't tell from my
accent. I'm from New York.

THE COURT: | have to ask the question the tape sometimes can't. Do you
have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No, | don't.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been the
victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: When | was a child, our apartment
was robbed.

THE COURT: That was a couple years ago.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: More than a couple.

THE COURT: Is there anything about that that would prejudice you at all in
this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: Not at all.

THE COURT: Either you or anyone closely associated with you been
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accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any bias based on race, religion, or gender, or
ethnicity?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No.

THE COURT: Ever ridden the city bus?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: No.

THE COURT: Can you think of any reason you wouldn't be fair and impartial
to both parties in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | think | could be fair and impartial,
but in light of what this case is about, | did work with children that were sexually
abused and did work with the police and CPS. And so | have some background in
it.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, we expect our jurors to come in with their
common, everyday understanding and training. But you can set that aside and you
wouldn't hold that against the State or you wouldn’t hold that against Mr. Pigeon?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | believe | could.

THE COURT: You could be fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 411: | believe ! could be.

THE COURT: Okay. If you'll pass that mic over.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Sharlene Balingit.

THE COURT: Do you work?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Yes.
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research facility.

quarters decide the issue. So if you have eight jurors, only six have to decide it. But
in a criminal case, all twelve have to decide it beyond a reasonable doubt. Do you

understand?

THE COURT: What do you do?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: I'm a registered nurse at a clinical

THE COURT: Background then in education?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Bachelors.

THE COURT: Are you married?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: No.

THE COURT: Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever sat as a juror before?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Yes.

THE COURT: Where?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Here.

THE COURT: Civil or criminal.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: | think it was civil.

THE COURT: How long ago?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Two to three years ago.
THE COURT: Without telling us the verdict, were you able to reach a verdict?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Yes.

THE COURT: Were you the jury foreperson?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: No.

THE COURT: Now the difference between civil and criminal, civil is three
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NUMBER 412: Yes.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone closely associated with you been the

victim of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JU